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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C. 20549
 

FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)

☒ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period June 30, 2025

☐ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

 
For the transition period from _________________ to _________________

 
Commission File No.: 001-37703

IZEA WORLDWIDE, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Nevada   37-1530765
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)   (I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)

1317 Edgewater Dr., # 1880,
Orlando, FL   32804

(Address of principal executive offices)   (Zip Code)

 
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (407) 674-6911

 
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class
Trading

Symbol (s) Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share IZEA The Nasdaq Capital Market

Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock
Purchase Rights - The Nasdaq Capital Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.   Yes  x  No  o
 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files).  Yes  ☒   No  o
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See
the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer  ☐ Accelerated filer ☐
Non-Accelerated Filer  ☒ Smaller reporting company ☒

Emerging growth company ☐

 
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting
standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  Yes  o  No  x

 As of August 8, 2025, there were 17,008,577 shares of our common stock outstanding.
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

IZEA Worldwide, Inc.
Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30,
2025

December 31,
2024

Assets
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 50,643,015  $ 44,644,468 
Accounts receivable, net 6,177,880  7,781,824 
Prepaid expenses 545,794  1,079,045 
Short term investments —  6,427,488 
Other current assets 22,370  97,215 

Total current assets 57,389,059  60,030,040 

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 58,890  103,574 
Software development costs, net of accumulated depreciation 2,182,241  2,086,660 

Total assets $ 59,630,190  $ 62,220,274 

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity    
Current liabilities:    

Accounts payable $ 957,100  $ 1,511,747 
Accrued expenses 2,631,553  3,734,123 
Contract liabilities 6,661,453  8,188,651 

Total current liabilities 10,250,106  13,434,521 

Finance obligation, less current portion —  4,034 
Total liabilities $ 10,250,106  $ 13,438,555 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 9)

Stockholders’ equity:    
Preferred stock; $0.0001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding —  — 
Common stock; $0.0001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; shares issued: 17,803,029 and 17,518,018,
respectively, shares outstanding: 16,913,906 and 16,931,169, respectively. 1,780  1,752 
Treasury stock at cost: 889,123 and 586,849 shares at June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively (2,344,698) (1,622,065)
Additional paid-in capital 155,009,102  154,593,800 
Accumulated deficit (103,234,787) (104,297,055)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (51,313) 105,287 

Total stockholders’ equity 49,380,084  48,781,719 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 59,630,190  $ 62,220,274 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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IZEA Worldwide, Inc.
Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Operations

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Revenue $ 9,133,232  $ 9,093,816  $ 17,101,595  $ 16,046,699 

Costs and expenses:
Cost of revenue 4,386,612  5,177,600  8,788,186  9,145,575 
Sales and marketing 962,017  3,206,979  2,083,799  6,263,270 
General and administrative 2,897,551  3,372,797  5,838,058  7,155,883 
Depreciation and amortization 149,242  225,748  309,594  429,934 

Total costs and expenses 8,395,422  11,983,124  17,019,637  22,994,662 

Income (loss) from operations 737,810  (2,889,308) 81,958  (6,947,963)

Other income (expense):
Change in the fair value of digital assets —  (26,043) —  80,116 
Interest expense (1,784) (1,999) (3,438) (4,000)
Other income (expense), net 469,042  634,226  983,748  1,304,091 

Total other income (expense), net 467,258  606,184  980,310  1,380,207 

Net income (loss) before income taxes $ 1,205,068  $ (2,283,124) 1,062,268  (5,567,756)
Tax benefit —  88,296  —  107,078 

Net income (loss) 1,205,068  (2,194,828) $ 1,062,268  $ (5,460,678)

Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic 16,947,527  16,437,460  16,980,960  16,470,467 
Basic income (loss) per common share $ 0.07  $ (0.13) $ 0.06  $ (0.33)

Weighted average common shares outstanding - diluted 17,817,378  16,437,460  17,827,552  16,470,467 
Diluted income (loss) per common share $ 0.07  $ (0.13) $ 0.06  $ (0.33)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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IZEA Worldwide, Inc.
Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

 

 
Three Months Ended

June 30,
Six Months Ended

June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024

Net income (loss) $ 1,205,068  $ (2,194,828) $ 1,062,268  $ (5,460,678)

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities held 1,694  92,630  (12,209) 150,807 
Unrealized gain (loss) on currency translation (34,932) (16,472) (144,391) (12,302)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) (33,238) 76,158  (156,600) 138,505 

Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 1,171,830  $ (2,118,670) $ 905,668  $ (5,322,173)

 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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IZEA Worldwide, Inc.
Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Three Months Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Common Stock Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Treasury
Stock Accumulated Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Stockholders’

EquityShares Amount

Balance, March 31, 2024 16,666,513  1,667  152,419,065  (1,019,997) (88,710,644) (188,244) 62,501,847 
Stock purchase plan & option exercise
issuances 3,360  —  5,907  —  —  —  5,907 
Stock issued for payment of services 31,915  3  74,997  —  —  —  75,000 
Stock-based compensation 101,566  10  394,921  —  —  —  394,931 
Shares withheld to cover statutory taxes (32,936) (3) (85,179) —  —  —  (85,182)
Foreign currency translation adjustment —  —  —  —  —  (16,472) (16,472)
Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  —  —  92,630  92,630 
Net comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  —  (2,194,828) —  (2,194,828)

Balance, June 30, 2024 16,770,418  1,677  $ 152,809,711  $ (1,019,997) $ (90,905,472) $ (112,086) $ 60,773,833 

Common Stock Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Treasury
Stock Accumulated Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Stockholders’

EquityShares Amount

Balance, March 31, 2025 17,661,220  1,766  154,793,924  (2,065,873) (104,439,855) (18,075) 48,271,887 
Stock purchase plan & option exercise
issuances 10,802  1  23,413  —  —  —  23,414 
Stock issued for payment of services 35,292  4  89,990  —  —  —  89,994 
Stock-based compensation 136,492  13  355,701  —  —  —  355,714 
Shares withheld to cover statutory taxes (40,777) (4) (119,909) —  —  —  (119,913)
Tender offer costs —  —  (134,017) —  —  —  (134,017)
Treasury stock —  —  —  (278,825) —  —  (278,825)
Foreign currency translation adjustment —  —  —  —  —  (34,932) (34,932)
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities held —  —  —  —  —  1,694  1,694 
Net income (loss) —  —  —  —  1,205,068  —  1,205,068 

Balance, June 30, 2025 17,803,029  1,780  $ 155,009,102  $ (2,344,698) $ (103,234,787) $ (51,313) $ 49,380,084 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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IZEA Worldwide, Inc.
Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Six Months Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

  Common Stock Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Treasury
Stock

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Stockholders’

Equity  Shares Amount

Balance, December 31, 2023 16,602,155  16,602,155  1,660  152,027,110  (1,019,997) (85,444,794) (250,591) 65,313,388 
Stock purchase plan & option
exercise issuances 3,360  —  5,907  —  —  —  5,907 
Stock issued for payment of services 64,385  6  150,000  —  —  —  150,006 
Stock-based compensation 151,587  15  749,105  —  —  —  749,120 
Shares withheld to cover statutory
taxes (51,069) (4) (122,411) —  —  —  (122,415)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment —  —  —  —  —  (12,302) (12,302)
Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  —  —  150,807  150,807 
Net comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  —  (5,460,678) —  (5,460,678)

Balance, June 30, 2024 16,770,418  1,677  $ 152,809,711  $ (1,019,997) $ (90,905,472) $ (112,086) $ 60,773,833 

Common Stock Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Treasury
Stock

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Stockholders’

EquityShares Amount

Balance, December 31,
2024 17,518,018  1,752  154,593,800  (1,622,065) (104,297,055) 105,287  48,781,719 
Stock purchase plan &
option exercise
issuances 10,802  1  23,413  —  —  —  23,414 

Stock issued for
payment of services 78,150  8  179,988  —  —  —  179,996 
Stock-based
compensation 292,966  29  640,817  —  —  —  640,846 

Shares withheld to cover
statutory taxes (96,907) (10) (294,899) (294,909)

Tender offer costs —  —  (134,017) —  —  —  (134,017)

Treasury stock —  —  —  (722,633) —  —  (722,633)

Foreign currency
translation adjustment —  —  —  —  —  (144,391) (144,391)

Unrealized gain (loss)
on securities held —  —  —  —  —  (12,209) (12,209)

Net income (loss) —  —  —  —  1,062,268  —  1,062,268 

Balance, June 30, 2025 17,803,029  1,780  $ 155,009,102  $ (2,344,698) $ (103,234,787) $ (51,313) $ 49,380,084 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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IZEA Worldwide, Inc.
Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024

Cash flows from operating activities:    
Net income (loss) $ 1,062,268  $ (5,460,678)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used for operating activities:
Adjustment to fair market value of digital assets —  (80,115)
Depreciation 44,684  53,258 
Amortization 264,910  376,676 
Deferred tax benefit, divestiture —  (107,644)
Stock-based compensation 640,846  749,120 
Value of stock issued or to be issued for payment of services 179,996  150,006 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    
Accounts receivable 1,603,944  (604,896)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 608,095  (323,359)
Accounts payable (554,647) (198,081)
Accrued expenses (1,076,910) (96,633)
Contract liabilities (1,527,198) (1,714,511)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,245,988  (7,256,857)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from investment maturities 6,403,689  14,712,380 
Purchase of property and equipment (29,693) (29,692)
Capitalization of software development costs (360,490) (437,152)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 6,013,506  14,245,536 
Cash flows from financing activities:    

Proceeds from exercise of stock options & ESPP issuances 23,414  5,907 
Purchase of treasury stock (722,633) — 
Tender offer costs (134,017) — 
Payments on shares withheld for statutory taxes (294,909) (122,415)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (1,128,145) (116,508)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (132,802) (17,033)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,998,547  6,855,138 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 44,644,468  37,446,728 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 50,643,015  $ 44,284,833 

Supplemental cash flow information:    
Interest paid $ 3,438  $ 4,000 

Supplemental non-cash activities:    
Fair Value of common stock issued for services $ 179,996  $ 150,006 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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IZEA Worldwide, Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1.    COMPANY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
Corporate Information and Nature of Business

IZEA Worldwide, Inc. (together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, “IZEA” or the “Company”) is a Nevada corporation founded in February 2006 under the
name PayPerPost, Inc. and became a public company in May 2011. In March 2016, the Company formed IZEA Canada, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated
in Ontario, Canada. In December 2023, IZEA purchased all of Hoozu Holdings' outstanding shares of capital stock, which it subsequently divested in December 2024.

The Company helps power the creator economy by enabling individuals to monetize their content, creativity, and influence through global brands and
marketers. IZEA compensates these creators for producing unique content, such as long and short-form text, videos, photos, status updates, and illustrations for
marketers or distributing such content on behalf of marketers through their websites, blogs, and social media channels.

The Company delivers value through its Managed Services, which include custom content workflow management, creator search and targeting, bidding,
analytics, and payment processing. Most marketers engage the Company to execute these services on their behalf. While the Company previously offered self-service
access to its technology platform for influencer and content marketing, its current focus is on providing full-service solutions tailored to client needs.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2025, the consolidated statements of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025
and 2024, the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the consolidated statements of stockholders'
equity for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the consolidated statements of cash flows for the six months June 30, 2025 and 2024 are
unaudited but include all adjustments that are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair presentation of its financial position at such dates and its results of
operations and cash flows for the periods then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States ("GAAP"). The consolidated
balance sheet as of December  31, 2024 has been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements at that date but, in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the SEC, does not include all of the information and notes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. Operating results for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2025 are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for the entire fiscal year. These unaudited consolidated financial statements
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, included in the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 27, 2025.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of IZEA Worldwide, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries subsequent to the subsidiaries’
acquisition, merger, or formation dates, as applicable. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase to be cash
equivalents. Deposits made to Company bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to a maximum amount of $250,000. The
Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation (“CDIC”) insures deposits made to the Company’s bank accounts in Canada up to CAD 100,000. Deposit balances exceeding
the various limits were approximately $50.1 million and $44.2 million as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively.

Accounts Receivable and Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s accounts receivable balance includes trade receivables, contract assets, and an allowance for doubtful accounts. Trade receivables represent
customer obligations arising from standard credit terms, which contract assets reflect revenue earned but not yet invoiced. As of June 30, 2025, the Company reported
net trade receivables of $6.2 million,
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IZEA Worldwide, Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

comprised entirely of accounts receivable, with no contract assets. As of December 31, 2024, the Company had net trade receivables of $7.8 million, including $7.6
million of accounts receivable and $0.2 million in contract assets.

Management determines the collectability of accounts by regularly evaluating individual customer receivables and considering a customer’s financial
condition, credit history, and current economic conditions. We will continue to monitor these factors and adjust our credit and collection policies as necessary to
address evolving market conditions and potential risks to financial performance. An account is deemed delinquent when the customer has not paid an amount due by
its associated due date. If a portion of the account balance is deemed uncollectible, the Company will either write off the amount owed or provide a reserve based on its
best estimate of the uncollectible portion of the account. We assess collectability risk both generally and by specific aged invoices. Our loss history informs a general
reserve percentage, which we apply to all invoices less than 90 days from the invoice due date, currently 1% of the outstanding balance. The general reserve, which we
update periodically, recognizes that some invoices will likely become a collection risk. When an invoice ages 90 days past its due date, we consider each invoice to
determine a reserve for collectability based on our prior history and recent communications with the customer, to determine a reserve amount. Generally, our reserve
for such aged invoices will approach 100% of the invoice amount.

The Company had a reserve for doubtful accounts as of June  30, 2025 and December  31, 2024 of $0.2 million. Management believes this estimate is
reasonable, but there can be no assurance that the estimate will not change due to economic or business conditions within the industry, the individual customers, or the
Company. Any adjustments to this account are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations as a general and administrative expense. The Company did not
recognize any bad debt expense in the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024.

     Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable have been typically limited because a large number of geographically diverse customers make up
the Company’s customer base, thus spreading the trade credit risk. The Company controls credit risk through credit approvals, credit limits, and monitoring procedures.
The Company performs credit evaluations of its customers but generally does not require collateral to support accounts receivable. The Company had three customers
that accounted for 13%, 14%, and 16% of total accounts receivable on June 30, 2025 and two customers that accounted for 11% and 14% of total accounts receivable
on December 31, 2024. The Company had two customers that accounted for 13% and 17% of its revenue during the six months June 30, 2025, and two customers that
accounted for 11% and 16% of its revenue during the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or if acquired in a business combination, at the acquisition date fair value. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Computer Equipment 3 years
Office Equipment 3 - 10 years
Furniture and Fixtures 5 - 10 years

The carrying amounts of assets sold or retired and the related accumulated depreciation are eliminated in the year of disposal, with resulting gains or losses
included in general and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of operations.

Intangible Assets

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-08, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Crypto Assets (Subtopic 350-60), which requires certain crypto assets
to be measured at fair value each reporting period, with changes recognized in net income. It also introduces new disclosure requirements, including asset name, fair
value, units held, cost basis, and annual reconciliations. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted.
The Company adopted the guidance early and sold all digital assets in September 2024. As of June 30, 2025, no digital assets were held, and no impairments were
recognized for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 or 2024.

The Company reviews long-lived assets, including capitalized software and intangible assets, for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Impairments are recognized when the asset’s fair value is less than its carrying amount. In connection with the Company’s 2024
reorganization and divestitures, all acquired intangible assets were written off. See “Note 5 – Intangible Assets” for additional details.

Software Development Costs

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 350-40, Internal Use Software, the Company capitalizes certain internal-use software
development costs associated with creating and enhancing internally developed software related to its platforms. Software development activities generally consist of
three stages (i) the research and planning
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IZEA Worldwide, Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

stage, (ii)  the application and development stage, and (iii)  the post-implementation stage. Costs incurred in the research and planning stage and in the post-
implementation stage of software development, or other maintenance and development expenses that do not meet the qualification for capitalization, are expensed as
incurred. Costs incurred in the application and development stage, including significant enhancements and upgrades, are capitalized. These costs include personnel and
related employee benefits expenses for employees or consultants directly associated with and who devote time to software projects and external direct costs of
materials obtained in developing the software. The Company also capitalizes costs related to cloud computing arrangements (“CCAs”). These software developments
and CCA costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of five years upon the initial release of the software or additional features. The
Company reviews the software development costs for impairment when circumstances indicate their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If the carrying value of
an asset group is not recoverable, the Company recognizes an impairment loss for the excess carrying value over the fair value in its consolidated statements of
operations. In December 2024, the Company reviewed its software assets, wrote off fully amortized balances no longer active, and accelerated the amortization of
certain software assets no longer in use, with further details provided in "Note 6 - Software Development Costs.

Leases

Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), established a right-of-use model that requires a lessee to record a right-of-use asset
and a right-of-use liability on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12 months. Leases are classified as either finance or operating, with classification
affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income statement. The Company does not record leases on the balance sheet with a lease term of 12 months or less
at the commencement date.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenue primarily from Managed Services when a marketer (typically a brand, agency, or partner) pays us to provide custom content,
influencer marketing, amplification, or other campaign management services (“Managed Services”). The Company also licenses some of its platforms and earns
license revenue and fees for those services.

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”).
Under ASC 606, revenue is recognized based on a five-step model as follows: (i) identify the contract with the customer; (ii) identify the performance obligations in
the contract; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (v) recognize revenue when (or
as) performance obligations are satisfied. The core principle of ASC 606 is that revenue is recognized when the transfer of promised goods or services to customers is
made in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company applies the five-step
model to contracts when it is probable that it will collect the consideration to which it is entitled in exchange for the goods or services it transfers to the customer. At
contract inception, once the contract is determined to be within the scope of ASC 606, the Company assesses the goods or services promised under each contract and
identifies those that constitute distinct performance obligations.

The Company also determines whether it acts as an agent or a principal for each identified performance obligation. The determination of whether the
Company acts as a principal or an agent is highly subjective and requires the Company to evaluate several indicators individually and collectively to make its
determination. For transactions in which the Company acts as a principal, revenue is reported on a gross basis as the amount paid by the marketer for the purchase of
content, sponsorship, promotion, and other related services. The Company records the amounts it pays to third-party creators as a cost of revenue. For transactions in
which the Company acts as an agent, revenue is reported on a net basis as the amount the Company charged to the self-service marketer using the Company’s
platforms, less the amounts paid to the third-party creators providing the service.

The Company maintains separate arrangements with each marketer and content creator either in the form of a master agreement or terms of service, which
specify the terms of the relationship and access to its platforms, or by a statement of work, which specifies the price and the services to be performed, along with other
terms. The transaction price is determined based on the fixed fee stated in the statement of work and does not include variable consideration. Marketers who contract
with the Company to manage their advertising campaigns or custom content requests may prepay for services or request credit terms. Payment terms are typically 30
days from the invoice date. The agreement typically provides for a non-refundable deposit which serves as a cancellation fee if the customer terminates the agreement
before the services are completed, or which is applied to the total amount due if services are completed as agreed. Billings in advance of completed services are
recorded as a contract liability until earned. The Company assesses collectability based on several factors, including the customer’s creditworthiness and payment and
transaction history.

The Company does not typically engage in contracts that exceed one year. Therefore, the Company does not capitalize costs to obtain its customer contracts,
as these amounts would generally be recognized over a period of less than one year and are not material.
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Fees for subscription or licensing services are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the service. Other Fees Revenue is generated when fees are
charged to the Company’s platform users, primarily related to monthly plan fees, which are recognized within the month to which they relate. For arrangements where
the Company acts as an agent, fees are recognized on a net basis. The Company is currently evaluating its capital allocation strategies, including its commitment to its
platforms and third-party licensing, which presently generate de minimis revenue.

Managed Services Revenue

For Managed Services Revenue, the Company enters into an agreement to provide services that may include multiple distinct performance obligations in the
form of (i) an integrated marketing campaign to provide influencer marketing services, which may include the provision of blogs, tweets, photos, or videos shared
through social network offerings and content promotion, such as click-through advertisements appearing in websites and social media channels, and (ii) custom content
items, such as a research or news articles, informational material or videos. Marketers typically purchase influencer marketing services to provide public awareness or
advertising buzz regarding the marketer’s brand and purchase custom content for internal and external use.

The Company views its obligation to deliver influencer marketing services, including management services, as a single performance obligation that is
satisfied over time as the customer receives the benefits from the services. The majority of revenue is recognized using an input method, where costs incurred are
compared to total expected costs to measure the progress toward satisfying the overall performance obligation of the marketing campaign. The Company’s
performance obligation in certain contracts with customers may be a stand-ready promise to provide influencer marketing services for an unknown or unspecified
quantity of deliverables over a specified term. Under a stand-ready obligation, the Company’s performance obligation is satisfied over time throughout the contract
term, and therefore, revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the contract. The Company may provide one type or a combination of all types of
these influencer marketing services on a statement of work for a lump sum fee. When multiple performance obligations exist in a contract, the Company allocates
revenue to each distinct performance obligation at contract inception based on its relative standalone selling price. These performance obligations are to be provided
over a period that generally ranges from one day to one year. The delivery of custom content represents a distinct performance obligation that is satisfied at a point in
time when each piece of content is delivered to the customer. Based on the Company’s evaluations, revenue from Managed Services is reported on a gross basis
because the Company has the primary obligation to fulfill the performance obligations, and it creates, reviews, and controls the services. The Company assumes the
risk of payment to any third-party creators and establishes the contract price directly with its customers based on the services requested in the statement of work.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to expense as they are incurred, including payments to content creators to promote the Company. For the three and six months
ended June 30, 2025, advertising spend was immaterial. In comparison, advertising expenses totaled approximately $0.9 million and $1.5 million for the three and six
months ended June  30, 2024, respectively. Advertising costs are reflected within sales and marketing expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are accounted for using the balance sheet approach, which requires recognizing deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected
future consequences of temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the assets and liabilities tax basis. A valuation allowance is provided when it is
more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company incurs state franchise tax in ten states, which is included in general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

     The Company identifies and evaluates uncertain tax positions, if any, and recognizes the impact of uncertain tax positions for which there is a less than more likely-
than-not probability of the position being upheld when reviewed by the relevant taxing authority. Such positions are deemed to be unrecognized tax benefits, and a
corresponding liability is established on the balance sheet. The Company has not recognized a liability for uncertain tax positions. If there were an unrecognized tax
benefit, the Company would recognize interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in operating expenses. The Company’s tax
years subject to examination based on the statute of limitations by the IRS is generally three years; however, the IRS may examine records and other evidence from the
year the net operating loss was generated when the Company utilizes net operating loss carryforwards in future periods. The Company’s tax years subject to
examination by the Canadian Revenue Agency is generally four years.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are recorded at fair value. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the
measurement date. The valuation techniques are based on
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observable and unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect readily obtainable data from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect certain market
assumptions. There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

• Level 1 – Valuation based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

• Level 2 – Valuation based on quoted market prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets.

• Level 3 – Valuation based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity, therefore requiring management’s best estimate of what
market participants would use as fair value.

Fair value estimates discussed herein are based upon certain market assumptions and pertinent information available to management. As of June 30, 2025, the
Company holds only cash and cash equivalents and no longer holds any marketable securities. Additional information is provided in Note 3 – Financial Instruments of
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation for options granted under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2023 Inducement Plan is measured at grant-date fair value and
expensed on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. Fair value is estimated using the Black-Scholes model. The Company applies the simplified method
to estimate the expected term, assuming even exercise between vesting and expiration, and uses the grant-date closing stock price as the fair value of common stock.
The Company uses the risk-free interest rate on the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury issues with an equivalent remaining term approximately equal to
the expected life of the award. The Company has never paid any cash dividends on its common stock and does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future.

The Company estimates forfeitures when recognizing compensation expense, and this estimate of forfeitures is adjusted over the requisite service period
based on the extent to which actual forfeitures differ, or are expected to differ, from such estimates. Changes in estimated forfeitures are recognized through a
cumulative catch-up adjustment, which is recognized in the period of change, and a revised amount of unamortized compensation expense to be recognized in future
periods.

The Company may issue restricted stock or restricted stock units (“RSUs”) that vest over time, including up to 1,800,000 performance- or time-based RSUs
granted under the IZEA Inducement Plan adopted on November 30, 2023. The plan was established to provide equity awards to new employees hired through
acquisitions transactions. These awards are recorded at fair value on the grant date and expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. See “Note 10
Stockholder’s Equity” for more details.

Business Combinations and Asset Acquisitions

The Company accounts for business combinations in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 805, “Business Combinations.” The
acquisition method of accounting is applied to all business combinations, whereby the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree are recognized and measured at their fair values as of the acquisition date. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair
value of net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. Goodwill is allocated to reporting units, which are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is subject to annual impairment testing. Acquisition-related costs, including advisory, legal, and due diligence fees, are expensed
as incurred and are included in general and administrative expenses in the period in which the acquisition occurs. The financial statements include the results of
operations and the financial position of businesses acquired from their respective acquisition dates. Any adjustments to the preliminary fair values of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed, known as measurement period adjustments, are recorded during the period of the adjustment.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Segment Reporting: Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures: In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic
280): Improving Reportable Segment Disclosures. This update is intended to improve reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced
disclosures about significant expenses. The ASU also requires all annual disclosures currently required by Topic 280 to be included in the interim periods. The update
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within the fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption
permitted and requiring retrospective application to all prior periods presented in the financial statements.

Income Taxes: Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures: In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to
Income Tax Disclosures, which requires enhanced disclosures of income tax components affecting the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid, disaggregated by
applicable taxing jurisdictions. The
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Company adopted this ASU effective January 1, 2025. The adoption did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

Disaggregation of Income Expenses: In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU No. 2024-03 (Subtopic 220-40) Disaggregation of Income Expenses, which
requires entities to provide enhanced disclosures related to certain disclosures related to certain expense categories included in the income statement. The update is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2026 and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027. The Company is currently
assessing the timing and impact of adopting the updated provisions.

NOTE 2.    BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

Divestiture of Hoozu Holdings PTY Ltd.

On December 18, 2024, the Company completed the divestiture of Hoozu Holdings PTY Ltd. (“Hoozu”) through its sale to a private Australian company, as
part of a strategy to optimize its market focus and enhance the profitability of its North American operations. The acquisition of Hoozu was completed on December 1,
2023, for $2.5 million in cash, common stock, and contingent consideration.

The sale of Hoozu resulted in cash proceeds of $73,529, net of approximately $28,000 in transaction costs, and resulted in a net loss of $1.9 million, net of a
$0.3 million deferred tax benefit, which, together with the year-to-date results of operations through the sale date, is reflected in the Company’s financial statements for
the period ended December 31, 2024.

NOTE 3.    FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Marketable Securities (Available for Sale)

The Company utilizes a leading national bank for the custody of its investment securities, in accordance with its updated investment policy focused on capital
preservation, risk mitigation, and return optimization.

As of June 30, 2025, the Company held $46.0 million in cash and cash equivalents, all classified as Level 1 financial instruments. During the three months
ended June 30, 2025, all other investments matured, and previously unrealized gains or losses were realized.

Cash equivalents and marketable securities are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. The adjusted cost basis, which includes unrealized gains and losses,
approximates settlement value when held to maturity. No gains or losses were recognized during the three months ended June 30, 2025. The Company recognized a
gain of $23,799 for six months ended June 30, 2025. The Company did not recognize any realized gains or losses in the three and six months ended June 30, 2024.

Realized gains and losses are a component of other income (expense), net. Unrealized gains and losses are a component of other comprehensive income (loss)
(“OCI”).

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of investments in marketable debt securities by stated contractual maturity dates:

June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Due in 1 year or less $ —  $ 6,427,488 
Total $ —  $ 6,427,488 

The following table presents fair values and net unrealized gains (losses) recorded to OCI, aggregated by investment category:

June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024

Fair Value
Net Unrealized Gain

(Loss) Fair Value
Net Unrealized Gain

(Loss)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 46,037,390  $ —  $ 44,644,468  $ — 
Government bonds —  —  998,070  (5,103)
Corporate debt securities —  —  4,430,539  (5,180)
Asset backed securities —  —  998,879  22,492 

Total $ 46,037,390  $ —  $ 51,071,956  $ 12,209 
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During the three and six months June 30, 2025, the Company did not recognize any credit losses and had no ending allowance balance for credit losses.

NOTE 4.     PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consist of the following:

June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Furniture and fixtures $ 29,848  $ 29,848 
Office equipment 8,506  8,506 
Computer equipment 277,918  277,918 

Total 316,272  316,272 
Less accumulated depreciation (257,382) (212,698)

Property and equipment, net $ 58,890  $ 103,574 

Depreciation expense on property and equipment recorded in depreciation and amortization expense in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss was $21,729 and $26,701 for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and was $44,684 and $53,258 for the six months ended
June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

NOTE 5.     INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Definite Lived Intangible Assets

The Company had no definite-lived intangible assets as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024.

The Company did not have any amortization expense recorded in depreciation and amortization in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive loss for the three and six months ended June  30, 2025. Amortization expense recorded in depreciation and amortization in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss was $49,287 and $123,990 for the three and six months ended June  30, 2024, respectively. These
amounts primarily related to the amortization of trade names and customer lists acquired in connection with the Hoozu and Zuberance acquisitions, both of which were
sold or discontinued in 2024.

Digital Assets

The Company determines the fair value of its digital assets on a recurring basis in accordance with ASU 2023-8, Accounting for and Disclosure of Crypto
Assets, based on quoted prices on the active exchange(s) that have been determined to be the principal market for such assets (Level 1 inputs). The Company performs
an analysis monthly to identify whether the fair market value of the digital assets has changed. If the then-current carrying value of a digital asset is different from the
fair value so determined, an adjustment in the amount equal to the difference between their carrying value and the price determined is recognized.

Gains and losses on digital assets are recognized within other income in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss in the period in
which the change to fair market value is identified. In determining the gain to be recognized upon sale, the Company calculates the difference between the sales price
and the carrying value of the digital assets sold immediately prior to the sale.

The Company had no digital assets on its balance sheet as of December 31, 2024.

Goodwill

The Company had no goodwill balance as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024.

NOTE 6.     SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Software development costs consist of the following:
June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024

Software development costs $ 3,242,018  $ 2,896,099 
Less accumulated amortization (1,059,777) (809,439)

Software development costs, net $ 2,182,241  $ 2,086,660 
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The Company capitalized software development costs of $211,183 and $363,474 during the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and
$360,490 and $437,152 for the six months ended June  30, 2025 and 2024 respectively. As of June  30, 2025, the Company has capitalized $3.2 million in direct
materials, consulting, payroll, and benefit costs to its internal-use software development costs in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Company amortizes its software development costs, commencing upon the initial release of the software or additional features, on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of five years, which is consistent with the amount of time its legacy platforms were in service or its actual useful life, if shorter. The
Company recorded amortization expenses associated with its capitalized software development cost of $127,514 and $124,381 during the three months ended June 30,
2025 and 2024, respectively, and $264,910 and $252,686 during the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

As of June 30, 2025, future estimated amortization expense related to software development costs is set forth in the following schedule:
Software Development
Amortization Expense

2025 256,699 
2026 640,848 
2027 609,569 
2028 343,329 
2029 199,460 
2030 $ 132,336 

Total $ 2,182,241 

NOTE 7.     ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Accrued payroll liabilities $ 2,123,701  $ 2,189,531 
Accrued taxes 29,936  47,046 
Current portion of finance obligation 33,726  59,386 
Accrued other 444,190  1,438,160 

Total accrued expenses $ 2,631,553  $ 3,734,123 

During the quarter ended September 30, 2024, the Company announced the departure of two executives. In accordance with their Separation Agreements and the
payments they are entitled to receive, a severance amount of $0.9 million was accrued and will be paid over a twelve-month period. In December 2024, in
conjunction with a targeted workforce reduction, the Company accrued $0.3 million in severance costs that was paid in January 2025. As of June 30, 2025, the
remaining balance for severance accrued is $0.2 million.

NOTE 8.    NOTES PAYABLE

Finance Obligation

The Company pays for its laptop computer equipment through long-term payment plans, using an imputed interest rate of 12.9%, based on its incremental
borrowing rate, to determine the present value of its financial obligation and to record interest expense over the term of the plan. The Company refreshed a portion of
its computer inventory during the fourth quarter of 2022, entering a new three-year payment plan with the same vendor. The total balance owed was $33,726 and
$63,420 as of June  30, 2025 and December  31, 2024, respectively, with the short-term portion of $33,726 and $59,386 recorded under accrued expenses in the
consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2025, and December 31, 2024, respectively.

Summary

Interest expense on financing arrangements recorded in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations was $1,784 and $1,999 for the three months
ended June 30, 2025. and 2024, respectively, and $3,438 and $4,000 during the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The total balance owed will be
paid in full in 2025.

(1)

(1)
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NOTE 9.    COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Commitments

The Company does not have any operating or finance leases greater than 12 months in duration as of June 30, 2025.

Retirement Plans

The Company offers a 401(k) plan to its eligible employees. The Company matches participant contributions in an amount equal to 50% of each participant’s
contribution up to 8% of the participant’s salary. The participants become vested in 20% annual increments after two years of service or fully vest upon the age of 60.
Total expense for employer matching contributions during the three and six months ended June  30, 2025 and 2024 was recorded in the Company’s consolidated
statements of operations as follows:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Cost of revenue $ 40,922  $ 19,722  $ 60,157  $ 42,200 
Sales and marketing 47,054  17,191  30,530  60,230 
General and administrative 508,636  48,018  525,257  92,602 
Total contribution expense $ 596,612  $ 84,931  $ 615,944  $ 195,032 

Litigation

The Company may occasionally be involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. While litigation carries inherent uncertainties, the
Company is not currently a party to any matters that it believes would have a material adverse effect, individually or in the aggregate.

NOTE 10.    STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Authorized Shares

The Company has 50,000,000 authorized shares of common stock and 10,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock, each with a par value of $0.0001 per
share. 500,000 shares of preferred stock are designated as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock.

Share Repurchase

On June 28, 2024, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had authorized a $5.0 million share repurchase program of the Company’s common
stock. In conjunction with the Cooperation Agreement signed on September 6, 2024, the maximum authorized repurchase amount was increased to $10.0 million.
Repurchases under the program may be made through open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions, or other methods, including tender offers.

Pursuant to this authorization, on May 13, 2025, the Company launched a modified “Dutch auction” tender offer to repurchase up to $8.7  million of its
outstanding common stock. The tender offer expired on June 16, 2025, and the final results were announced on June 18, 2025. In accordance with the terms of the
offer, the Company repurchased 38,682 shares at a purchase price of $2.80 per share, for an aggregate cost of approximately $0.1 million, excluding fees and expenses.

On June 16, 2025, the Company entered into an agreement with Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc. (“Ladenburg”) authorizing Ladenburg to purchase shares of
the Company’s common stock on the Company’s behalf beginning on July 16, 2025, and ending on the earliest of May 15, 2026, the date the aggregate dollar limit
under the Company’s repurchase authorization is reached, or the occurrence of certain other specified events. Purchases will be made from time to time, depending on
market conditions, in open market or privately negotiated transactions, at prices deemed appropriate by management and are intended to comply with the safe harbor
provisions of Rules 10b5-1 and Rule 10b-18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. As of June 30, 2025, no shares have been purchased under this plan.

As of June 30, 2025, a total of 523,268 shares have been purchased under the repurchase program with an average price per share of $2.53, for a total of $1.3
million. The remaining dollar value authorized for repurchase under the Company’s programs as of June 30, 2025 was approximately $8.7 million.

A table of the Company’s share repurchases for the quarter ended June 30, 2025, as required by item 703 of Regulation S-K, is included in Part II, Item 2 of
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

15



Equity Incentive Plan

The Company’s stockholders approved an amendment and restatement of the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan at the Company’s 2024 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders held on December 12, 2024, to increase the number of plan shares by 700,000 shares, from 3,675,000 to 4,375,000 shares. As of June 30, 2025, the
Company had 771,648 remaining shares of common stock available for issuance pursuant to future grants under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

Restricted Stock

Under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan, the Board determines the terms and conditions of each restricted stock issuance, including any future vesting
restrictions.

In 2024, the Company issued a total of 64,385 shares of restricted common stock with a grant date fair value of $0.2 million for their annual service as
independent directors of the Company. The stock was granted in installments on the last day of each quarter and vested immediately.

In the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, the Company issued its six independent directors a total of 78,150 shares of restricted common stock,
respectively, with an aggregate grant date valuation of $179,996 for their service as directors of the Company.

The following table contains summarized information about restricted stock issued during the years ended December 31, 2024 and the six months ended
June 30, 2025:

Restricted Stock Common Shares

Weighted Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Weighted Average
Remaining Years

to Vest
Nonvested at December 31, 2023 —  $ —  0.0
Granted 125,863  2.54 
Vested (125,863) 2.54 
Nonvested at December 31, 2024 —  $ —  0.0
Granted 78,150  2.30 
Vested (78,150) 2.30 
Nonvested at June 30, 2025 —  $ —  0.0

Although restricted stock is issued upon the grant of an award, the Company excludes restricted stock from the computations within the financial statements
of total shares outstanding and basic earnings per share until such time as the restricted stock vests.

Expenses recognized on restricted stock issued to independent directors for services were $89,994 and $75,006 during the three months ended June 30, 2025
and 2024, respectively, and $179,996 and $150,006 during the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

On June 30, 2025, the fair value of the Company’s common stock was approximately $2.55 per share and the Company did not have any non-vested restricted
stock.

Restricted Stock Units

The Board determines the terms and conditions of each restricted stock unit award issued under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

During the six months ended June  30, 2025, the Company issued a total of 573,096 time-based restricted stock units, initially valued at $1.6 million, as
additional compensation, including 520,817 time-based restricted stock units, initially valued at $1.5 million, to non-executive employees and 52,279 time-based
restricted stock units, initially valued at $0.1 million, to executives. These time-based restricted stock units have vesting periods ranging from 36 to 48 months from
issuance.

The following table contains summarized information about restricted stock units during the year ended December  31, 2024, and the six months ended
June 30, 2025:
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Restricted Stock Units Common Shares

Weighted Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Weighted Average
Remaining Years

to Vest
Nonvested at December 31, 2023 962,849  $ 2.60  2.5
Granted 2,348,423  2.31 
Vested (956,679) 2.54 
Forfeited (305,821) 2.41 
Nonvested at December 31, 2024 2,048,772  $ 2.33  2.6
Granted 573,096  2.83 
Vested (304,008) 2.31 
Forfeited (204,393) 2.55 
Nonvested at June 30, 2025 2,113,467  $ 2.48  2.78

 In the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, the table summarizing the number of shares granted during the year
inadvertently omitted certain equity awards, although the correct total was disclosed in the accompanying narrative. The total number of shares granted during
2024 was 2,348,423, inclusive of awards to both executive and non-executive employees. The previously reported table total of 1,858,023 has been updated to
reflect the correct number of granted shares. This did not have an impact on our financial statements for the period.

Expenses recognized on restricted stock units issued to employees were $0.4 million and $0.3 million during the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively and $0.6 million and $0.7 million during the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. On June 30, 2025, the fair value of the Company’s
common stock was approximately $2.55 per share, and the intrinsic value of the non-vested restricted units was $4.1 million. Future compensation related to the non-
vested restricted stock units as of June 30, 2025, is $3.7 million, and it is estimated to be recognized over the weighted-average vesting period of approximately 2.78
years.

Stock Options

Under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan, the Board determines the exercise price to be paid for the stock option shares, the period within which each stock
option may be exercised, and the terms and conditions of each stock option. The exercise price of incentive and non-qualified stock options may not be less than 100%
of the fair market value per share of the Company’s common stock on the grant date. If an individual owns stock representing more than 10% of the outstanding
shares, the exercise price of each share of an incentive stock option must be equal to or exceed 110% of fair market value. Unless otherwise determined by the Board at
the time of grant, the exercise price is set at the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date (or the last trading day prior to the grant date, if it
is awarded on a non-trading day). Additionally, the term is set at ten years, and the option typically vest on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period as
follows: 25% one year from the date of grant with the remaining vesting monthly in equal increments over the following three years. The Company issues new shares
for any stock awards or options exercised under its 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

A summary of option activity under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan during the year ended December 31, 2024, and the six months ended June 30, 2025, is
presented below:

(1)

(1)
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Options Outstanding Common Shares
Weighted Average

Exercise Price

Weighted Average
Remaining Life

(Years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 343,601  $ 9.53  5.2
Exercised (65,154) 1.21 
Expired (244,588) 10.51 
Forfeited (520) 9.24 
Outstanding at December 31, 2024 33,339  $ 18.60  3.7
Exercised —  — 
Expired (9,343) 28.54 
Forfeited (9) 12.61 
Outstanding at June 30, 2025 23,987  $ 14.73  4.37

Exercisable at June 30, 2025 23,890  $ 14.75  4.36

During the six months ended June 30, 2025, no options were exercised. During the six months ended June 30, 2024, 313 options were exercised for gross
proceeds of $701. The intrinsic value of the exercised options was $50. The fair value of the Company's common stock on June 30, 2025, was approximately $2.55 per
share, and the intrinsic value on outstanding options as of June 30, 2025 was $177. The intrinsic value of the exercisable options as of June 30, 2025 was $177.

A summary of the nonvested stock option activity under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan during the years ended December 31, 2024, and the six months ended
June 30, 2025, is presented below:

Nonvested Options Common Shares

Weighted Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Weighted Average
Remaining Years

to Vest
Nonvested at December 31, 2023 26,373  $ 8.83  1.1
Vested (24,728) 18.60 
Forfeited (520) 9.24 
Nonvested at December 31, 2024 1,125  18.60  3.7
Vested (1,019) 14.73 
Forfeited (9) 12.61 
Nonvested at June 30, 2025 97  $ 14.73  0.1

There were outstanding options to purchase 23,987 shares with a weighted average exercise price of $14.73 per share, of which options to purchase 23,890
shares were exercisable with a weighted average exercise price of $14.75 per share as of June 30, 2025.

Expense recognized on stock options issued to employees during the three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 were $1,568 and $44,514, respectively.
Expense recognized on stock options issued to employees during the six months ended June  30, 2025 and 2024 were $9,069 and $96,479, respectively. Future
compensation related to non-vested awards as of June  30, 2025, is $407, and it is estimated to be recognized over the weighted-average vesting period of
approximately 0.1 years.

Inducement Plan

On November 30, 2023, the Board of Directors adopted the IZEA Worldwide, Inc. 2023 Inducement Plan (the “Inducement Plan”) to accommodate equity
grants to new employees hired by IZEA in connection with acquisition transactions. Under the Inducement Plan, IZEA may grant restricted stock units (“RSUs”),
including performance-based and time-based RSUs, with respect to up to a total of 1,800,000 shares of IZEA common stock to new employees of IZEA or its
subsidiaries. Pursuant to Rule 5635(c)(4) of the NASDAQ Listing Rules, the Inducement Plan was adopted without stockholder approval. In accordance with Rule
5635(c)(4) of the NASDAQ Listing Rules, awards under the Inducement Plan can only be made to individuals not previously employees or non-employee directors of
IZEA (or following such individuals’ bona fide period of non-employment with IZEA), as an inducement material to the individuals’ entry into employment with IZEA
or in connection with a merger or acquisition, to the extent permitted by Rule 5635(c)(3) of the NASDAQ Listing Rules.
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The following table contains summarized information about inducement grant-related RSUs during the year ended December 31, 2024, and the six months
ended June 30, 2025.

Inducement Shares Time-Based Performance Based Total
Grant Outstanding at December 31, 2023 10,000 328,354 338,354
Granted 219,355 — 219,355
Forfeited (179,355) (328,354) (507,709)
Grant Outstanding at December 31, 2024 50,000 — 50,000
Granted — — —
Forfeited — — —
Grant Outstanding at June 30, 2025 50,000 — 50,000

Inducement shares forfeited in 2024 were related to the divestiture of Hoozu in December, 2024.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The amended and restated IZEA Worldwide, Inc. 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) provides for the issuance of up to 125,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock to employees regularly employed by the Company for 90 days or more on a full-time or part-time basis (20 hours or more per week on a
regular schedule). The ESPP operates in successive six-month periods commencing at the beginning of each fiscal year half. Each eligible employee who elects to
participate may purchase up to 10% of their annual compensation in common stock, not to exceed $21,250 annually or 2,000 shares per offering period. The purchase
price will be the lower of (i) 85% of the fair market value of a share of common stock on the first day of the offering period or (ii) 85% of the fair market value of a
share of common stock on the last day of the offering period. The ESPP will continue until January 1, 2028, unless otherwise terminated by the Board.

The stock compensation expense on ESPP options was $769 and $1,031 for the three months ended June  30, 2025, and 2024, respectively. The stock
compensation expense on ESPP options was $11,558 and $2,041 for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024. As of June 30, 2025, there were 61,281 remaining
shares of common stock available for future issuance under the ESPP.

Shareholder Rights Plan

On May 28, 2024, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of one preferred share purchase right (a “Right”) for each share of the Company’s common
stock as of June 7, 2024 (the “Record Date”), pursuant to a Rights Agreement between the Company and Broadridge Corporate Issuer Solutions, LLC, as Rights
Agent. This Rights Agreement, which was filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on May 28, 2024, expired on May
31, 2025. The Rights did not become exercisable prior to the expiration of the Rights Agreement.

Summary of Stock-Based Compensation

The stock-based compensation cost related to all awards granted to employees is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is
recognized as an expense over the employee’s requisite service period utilizing the weighted-average forfeiture rates as disclosed in “Note 1 Company and Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies.” Total stock-based compensation expense recognized on restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock options, and employee stock
purchase plan issuances during the three and six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 was recorded in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations as
follows:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Cost of revenue 1,340  $ 56,874  63,789  $ 108,445 
Sales and marketing 59,994  64,719  49,724  121,207 
General and administrative 294,380  273,338  527,333  519,468 
Total stock-based compensation $ 355,714  $ 394,931  $ 640,846  $ 749,120 

 (1)

(1) 
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

We recognize activity in other comprehensive income (loss) for unrealized gains and losses on securities and foreign currency translation adjustments. The
activity in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, and 2024, respectively, was as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, 2025 Three Months Ended June 30, 2024

Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on Securities

Currency Translation
Adjustment

Reclassification of
Foreign Currency

Translation Adjustment
to Income

Total Accumulated
Other Comprehensive

Income (Loss)
Unrealized Gain

(Loss) on Securities
Currency Translation

Adjustment

Total Accumulated
Other Comprehensive

Income

Balance at March 31 $ (1,694) $ 17,837  $ (34,218) $ (18,075) $ (192,414) $ 4,170  $ (188,244)
Other comprehensive income
(loss) 1,694  (34,932) —  $ (33,238) 92,630  (16,472) $ 76,158 

Balance at June 30 $ —  $ (17,095) $ (34,218) $ (51,313) $ (99,784) $ (12,302) $ (112,086)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2025 Six Months Ended June 30, 2024

Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on Securities

Currency Translation
Adjustment

Reclassification of
Foreign Currency

Translation Adjustment
to Income

Total Accumulated
Other Comprehensive

Income (Loss)
Unrealized Gain

(Loss) on Securities
Currency Translation

Adjustment

Total Accumulated
Other Comprehensive

Income

Balance at December 31 $ 12,209  $ 127,296  $ (34,218) $ 105,287  $ (250,591) $ —  $ (250,591)
Other comprehensive income
(loss) (12,209) (144,391) —  (156,600) 150,807  (12,302) 138,505 
Balance at June 30 $ —  $ (17,095) $ (34,218) $ (51,313) $ (99,784) $ (12,302) $ (112,086)

NOTE 11.    EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
Basic earnings (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding

during the period.

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during
the period, adjusted for the potential dilutive effect of stock options, unvested restricted stock units, and other convertible securities. The calculation includes the effect
of dilutive securities only when their inclusion would not be anti-dilutive. For share-based awards, the Company uses the treasury stock method, which assumes
proceeds from the assumed exercise or vesting are used to repurchase shares at the average market price during the period.

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Net income (loss) $ 1,205,068  $ (2,194,828) $ 1,062,268  $ (5,460,678)

Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 16,947,527  16,437,460  16,980,960  16,470,467 
Basic income (loss) per common share $ 0.07  $ (0.13) $ 0.06  $ (0.33)

Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 16,947,527  16,437,460  16,980,960  16,470,467 
Plus:

“In-the-money” stock options 313  —  313  — 
“In-the-money” restricted stock units 869,616  —  846,355  — 

Less:
Shares assumed repurchased under treasury stock method (78) —  (76) — 

Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 17,817,378  16,437,460  17,827,552  16,470,467 
Diluted income (loss) per common share $ 0.07  $ (0.13) $ 0.06  $ (0.33)

The Company excluded the following weighted average items from the above computation of diluted loss per common share, as their effect would be anti-
dilutive:
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Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Stock options 23,674  342,779  23,987  342,779 
Restricted stock units 429,100  1,446,169  429,100  1,401,721 
Total excluded shares 452,774  1,788,948  453,087  1,744,500 

NOTE 12.    REVENUE

The following table illustrates the Company’s revenue:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Managed Services Revenue 9,053,031  8,850,463  16,960,441  15,547,005 
SaaS Services Revenue 80,201  243,353  141,154  499,694 

Total Revenue $ 9,133,232  $ 9,093,816  $ 17,101,595  $ 16,046,699 

The Company’s revenue is predominantly from Managed Services. Managed Services revenue is comprised of two types of revenue, Sponsored Social and
Content. Sponsored Social revenue, which totaled $8.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025 and $7.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024, is
recognized over time. Content revenue, which totaled $1.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2025, and $1.7 million for the three months ended June 30,
2024, is recognized at a point in time. SaaS Revenue, which are not material to total revenue, are recognized over time.

The following table provides the Company’s revenues as determined by customer geographic region:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Revenue from North America $ 7,413,992  $ 7,537,029  $ 15,042,336  $ 13,027,444 
Revenue from Other 102,055  445,224  204,247  879,833 
Revenue from APAC 1,617,185  1,111,563  1,855,012  2,139,422 

Total $ 9,133,232  $ 9,093,816  $ 17,101,595  $ 16,046,699 

Contract Assets and Liabilities

The following tables provide information about receivables, contract assets, and contract liabilities from contracts with customers reported in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet:

June 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Billed contract assets $ 6,357,470  $ 7,835,041 
Unbilled contract assets 13,195  151,783 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (192,785) (205,000)
Contract liabilities 6,661,453  8,188,651 

 Contract liabilities includes the balance of signed contracts that have not been invoiced to the customer and the value of signed contracts that have yet to be
recognized as revenue.

The Company does not typically engage in contracts longer than one year. Therefore, the Company will recognize substantially all of the contract liabilities
recorded at the end of the year in the following year. The contract liability balance as of December 31, 2024, was $8.2 million. Of that balance, $7.4 million was
recognized as revenue during the six months ended June 30, 2025. The contract liability balance as of June 30, 2025, was $6.7 million. The Company expects to
recognize the associated revenue during the next twelve months.

Contract receivables are recognized when the receipt of consideration is unconditional. Contract liabilities relate to the consideration received from customers
in advance of the Company satisfying performance obligations under the terms of the contracts, which will be earned in future periods. Contract liabilities increase as a
result of receiving new advance payments

from customers and decrease as revenue is recognized upon the Company meeting the performance obligations. As a practical expedient, the Company expenses the
costs of sales commissions that are paid to its sales force associated with obtaining contracts that are less than one year in length in the period incurred.

Remaining Performance Obligations

As most of the Company’s contracts have terms of one year or less, the remaining performance obligations at June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, are
equal to the contract liabilities disclosed above. The Company expects to recognize the full balance of the unearned revenue from June 30, 2025 within twelve months.

(1)

(1)
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NOTE 13. SEGMENT DISCLOSURES

The Company provides value through managing custom content workflow, creator search and targeting, bidding, analytics, and payment processing (the
“Managed Services”). Our Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) is our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”). We evaluate our financial performance based on the
results of one reportable operating segment, as defined by ASC 280.

The CODM monitors revenue growth and profitability trends to assess market demand, pricing strategies, new customer growth, current customer retention
and expansion, and growth by market vertical. Personnel cost trends are studied to assess efficiency, efficacy of incentive programs, and to determine the need for
headcount adjustments. Cash operating cost trends inform how non-payroll costs are impacting cash resources. Taken together, net income is the ultimate measure of
performance, or investment in growth. Resource allocation decisions include funding new technologies, additional headcount to drive and manage growth, informing
cost management strategies and evaluating financing needs.

The following table depicts reportable segment results reviewed by the CODM:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Net revenue $ 9,133,232  $ 9,093,816  $ 17,101,595  $ 16,046,699 

Less:
Cost of revenue-direct 3,679,117  3,877,554  7,016,943  6,631,406 
Human capital costs 3,272,216  4,943,804  6,727,032  4,943,804 
Other cash operating costs 925,716  2,641,064  2,311,806  9,547,570 
Depreciation and amortization 149,242  225,748  309,594  429,934 
Stock based compensation 355,714  394,931  640,846  749,120 
Interest income (455,625) (671,517) (946,533) (671,517)
Deferred federal tax —  (18,782) —  (18,782)
Other expense (income) 1,784  (104,158) (20,361) (104,158)

Segment net income (loss) $ 1,205,068  $ (2,194,828) $ 1,062,268  $ (5,460,678)

The following descriptions provide additional details regarding certain components represented in the accompanying table, including cost of revenue, human
capital costs, and cash operating costs.

Cost of revenue includes the direct costs associated with providing our services to customers. These costs primarily consist of influencer fees and other costs
directly tied to the fulfillment of customer contracts.

Human capital costs represent expenses related to our employees, including salaries, wages, bonuses, commissions, payroll taxes, and employee benefits.

Other cash operating expenses refer to the recurring operating costs of running the business, excluding non-cash items such as depreciation, amortization, and
stock-based compensation. These expenses include professional services, software subscriptions, travel, and other general business costs.

Other income includes interest expense, net realized gains (losses) on the sale of securities and cryptocurrency, as well as realized gains (losses) on foreign
exchange transactions.
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NOTE 14.    INCOME TAX

The provision for income taxes for interim periods is determined using an estimated annual effective tax rate in accordance with ASC 740-270, Income Taxes,
Interim Reporting. The effective tax rate may be subject to fluctuations during the year as new information is obtained, which may affect the assumptions used to
estimate the annual effective tax rate, including factors such as valuation allowances against deferred tax assets, the recognition or de-recognition of tax benefits
related to uncertain tax position, if any, and changes in or the interpretation of tax laws in jurisdictions where the Company conducts business.

The Company’s income tax expense and effective tax rate were as follows:
Three Months Ended

June 30,
Six Months Ended

June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024

Income tax benefit (expense) $ —  $ 88,296  $ —  $ 107,078 
Effective tax rate — % 3.9 % — % 1.9 %

NOTE 15.     SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 4, 2025, the One Big Beautiful Bill was enacted (“OBBBA”), introducing significant and wide-ranging changes to the U.S. federal tax system.
Significant components include restoration of 100% accelerated tax depreciation on qualifying property including expansion to cover qualified production property.
Another major aspect includes the return to immediate expensing of domestic research and experimental expenditures (“R&E”) which in some cases may include
retroactive application back to 2021 for businesses with gross receipts of less than $31 million or accelerated tax deductions of R&E that was previously capitalized for
larger businesses. The legislation also reinstates EBITDA-based interest deductions for tax purposes and makes several business tax incentives permanent. Less
favorable business provisions include limitations on tax deductions for charitable contributions.

The OBBBA modified the U.S. International Tax provisions for Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income (“GILTI”), Foreign-Derived Intangible Income
(“FDII”), and the Base-erosion Anti-abuse Tax (“BEAT”) effective for tax years starting after December 31, 2025. The tax rate on GILTI, now renamed to Net CFC
Tested Income (“NCTI”), is now 12.6%. The FDII rules, now renamed to Foreign Derived Deduction Eligible Income (“FDDEI”), now carry a 14% tax rate on FDDEI
eligible income. The OBBB Act increases the BEAT rate from 10% to 10.5%.

    The Company is currently assessing the potential impact of this legislation on its future financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. In accordance with
U.S. GAAP, the effects will be recognized in the period of enactment.

The Company has completed an evaluation of all subsequent events through August 12, 2025, to ensure that these consolidated financial statements include
appropriate disclosure of events both recognized in the consolidated financial statements and events that occurred but were not recognized in the consolidated financial
statements. The Company has concluded that other than the enactment of the OBBBA, there were no other events that required recognition or disclosure.

ITEM 2.  — MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND     RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Information

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (this “Quarterly Report”) contains “forward-looking statements” intended to qualify for the safe harbor from liability
established by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements other than statements of historical fact contained in this report, including those
contained in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the notes to our consolidated financial statements,
particularly those that utilize terminology such as “may,” “will,” “would,” “can,” “could,” “continue,” “design,” “should,” “expects,” “aims,” “anticipates,”
“estimates,” “believes,” “thinks,” “intends,” “likely,” “projects,” “plans,” “pursue,” “strategy,” “future,” “forecasts,” “goal,” “hopes,” or the negative of these words or
other words or expressions of similar meaning, are forward-looking statements. Such statements are based on currently available operating, financial and competitive
information, and are subject to inherent risks, uncertainties, and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict and many of which are outside of our control.
Future events and our actual results and financial condition may differ materially from those reflected in these forward-looking statements. Therefore, you should not
rely on any of these forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause these differences include, but are not limited to, the following:

• adverse economic or market conditions that may harm our business; including supply-chain issues, labor distribution, business closures, tariffs, and
inflationary pressures;
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• a few of our customers accounting for a significant portion of our gross billings and accounts receivable, and the loss of, or reduced purchases from, these or
other customers having a material adverse effect on our operating results;

• any erroneous or inaccurate estimates or judgments relating to our critical accounting policies;

• our ability to raise the additional funding needed to fund our business operation in the future;

• our ability to satisfy the requirements for continued listing of our common stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market;

• our ability to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting and effective disclosure controls and procedures;

• our ability to protect our intellectual property and other proprietary rights;

• our ability to maintain and grow our business;

• results of any future litigation and costs incurred in connection with any such litigation;

• competition in the industry;

• variability of operating results;

• our ability to maintain and enhance our brand;

• accuracy of tracking the number of user accounts;

• any security breaches or other disruptions compromising our proprietary information and exposing us to liability;

• our development and introduction of new products and services;

• our reliance on, and compliance with, open-source software;

• the successful integration of acquired companies, technologies, and assets into our portfolio of software and services;

• marketing and other business development initiatives;

• general government regulation;

• dependence on key personnel;

• the ability to attract, hire, and retain personnel who possess the technical skills and experience necessary to meet the service requirements of our customers;

• the potential liability concerning actions taken by our existing and past employees;

• any losses or issues we may encounter as a consequence of accepting or holding digital assets;

• impacts of the situation in the Middle East and the military conflict between Russia and Ukraine, and the global responses to them;

• risks associated with doing business internationally; and
• the other risks and uncertainties described in the Risk Factors section of this Quarterly Report and the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31, 2024, filed with the SEC on March 27, 2025.

All forward-looking statements in this document are based on current expectations, intentions, and beliefs using information available to us as of the date of
this Quarterly Report; we assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements, except as required by law. Forward-looking statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause the actual results to differ materially from any future results, performance, or achievements expressed or
implied by such forward-looking statements.

Company Overview

IZEA Worldwide, Inc. (“IZEA”, “Company,” “we”, “us” or “our”) is a leading innovator in the creator economy, specializing in providing value through
managing custom content workflow, creator search and targeting, bidding, analytics, and payment processing. The Company’s mission is to make creator economy
solutions for marketers. We offer solutions that range from creator agency services to creator technologies to a marketplace that connects marketers with creators. By
fostering these connections, we light up the creator economy with IZEAs - social-first content, made by creators, that are culturally relevant and move at the speed of
culture, champion the creators, empowering individuals to monetize their creativity, content, and influence.
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IZEA made a significant mark in the industry by launching the first influencer marketplace, PayPerPost, in 2006, setting a precedent for the evolution of
digital marketing platforms. Today, the Company caters to a diverse range of clients, including independent creators and Fortune 10 brands, offering services in
influencer marketing, customer-generated content, and custom content creation. IZEA provides tech-enabled managed services and self-service software tools,
accommodating the varying needs of its clientele and ensuring mutually beneficial collaborations within its ecosystem.

IZEA Flex is a robust suite of tools that enhance IZEA’s ability to manage influencer marketing at scale. Beyond enabling seamless campaign execution, Flex
empowers IZEA’s internal teams to measure influencer marketing performance with precision. The platform boasts a suite of core modules, which together provide a
comprehensive toolkit for optimizing influencer marketing campaigns. Flex is distinguished by its ability to quantify the ROI of marketing efforts at scale,
complemented by the introduction of AI-powered tools that streamline content and creative campaign ideation.

Key Components of Results of Operations

Overall consolidated results of operations are evaluated based on Revenue, Cost of Revenue, Sales and Marketing expenses, General and Administrative
expenses, Depreciation and Amortization, and Other Income (Expense), net.

Revenue

We generate revenue primarily from our managed services, when a marketer (typically a brand, agency, or partner) pays us to provide custom content,
influencer marketing, amplification, or other campaign management services (“Managed Services”).

Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue consists of direct costs paid to our third-party creators who provide the custom content, influencer marketing, or amplification services for
our Managed Service customers, where we report revenue on a gross basis. It also includes internal costs for our campaign fulfillment and SaaS support departments.
These costs include salaries, bonuses, commissions, stock-based compensation, employee benefit costs, and miscellaneous departmental costs related to the personnel
responsible for supporting our customers and ultimately fulfilling our obligations under our contracts with customers.

Sales and Marketing

Our sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries, bonuses, commissions, stock-based compensation, employee benefit costs, travel, and
miscellaneous departmental costs for our marketing, sales, and sales support personnel. They also include marketing expenses such as brand marketing, public
relations events, trade shows, marketing materials, and travel expenses.

General and Administrative

Our general and administrative (“G&A”) expense consists primarily of salaries, bonuses, commissions, stock-based compensation, employee benefit costs,
and miscellaneous departmental costs related to our executive, finance, legal, human resources, and other administrative personnel. It also includes travel, public
company, investor relations expenses, accounting, legal professional services fees, and other corporate-related expenses.

Within G&A, we incorporate technology and development costs, consisting primarily of our payroll costs for our internal engineers and contractors
responsible for developing, maintaining, and improving our technology, as well as hosting and software subscription costs. These costs are expensed as incurred,
except to the extent that they are associated with internal-use software that qualifies for capitalization, which is then recorded as software development costs in the
consolidated balance sheet. When major software components are developed, we capitalize these as intangible assets. Depreciation and amortization related to these
costs are separately stated under depreciation and amortization in our consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

G&A expenses include current period gains and losses on our acquisition costs payable and gains and losses from the sale of fixed assets. Impairments on
fixed assets are included as part of G&A expenses presented separately in our consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss when deemed material.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenses consists primarily of amortization of our internal-use software and acquired intangible assets from our business
acquisitions. To a lesser extent, we also have depreciation and amortization on equipment used by our personnel. Costs are amortized or depreciated over the estimated
useful lives of the associated assets.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest Expense. Interest expense is primarily related to the payment plans for purchasing computer equipment.
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Other Income. Other income consists primarily of interest income earned on investments, as well as realized gains and losses on foreign currency exchange
transactions, primarily related to the Canadian and Australian Dollar.

Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

The following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated statements of operations and the change between the periods:

Three Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change % Change

Revenue $ 9,133,232  $ 9,093,816  $ 39,416  — %

Costs and expenses:    
Cost of revenue 4,386,612  5,177,600  (790,988) (15)%
Sales and marketing 962,017  3,206,979  (2,244,962) (70)%
General and administrative 2,897,551  3,372,797  (475,246) (14)%
Depreciation and amortization 149,242  225,748  (76,506) (34)%

Total costs and expenses 8,395,422  11,983,124  (3,587,702) (30)%
Income (loss) from operations 737,810  (2,889,308) 3,627,118  (126)%
Other income (expense):    

Change in the fair value of digital assets —  (26,043) 26,043  (100)%
Interest Expense (1,784) (1,999) 215  (11)%
Other income (expense), net 469,042  634,226  (165,184) (26)%

Total other income (expense), net $ 467,258  $ 606,184  $ (138,926) (23)%
Net income (loss) before income taxes $ 1,205,068  $ (2,283,124) $ 3,488,192  (153)%

Tax benefit —  88,296  (88,296) (100)%
Net income (loss) $ 1,205,068  $ (2,194,828) $ 3,399,896  (155)%

Revenue

Revenue during the three months ended June 30, 2025 was essentially flat compared to the prior year’s quarter. The three months ended June 30, 2024 total
included $0.8 million of revenue from Hoozu that was divested in December 2024. Excluding $0.8 million in revenue from Hoozu, revenue grew 10.5% during the
quarter ended June 30, 2025. Revenue from ongoing customers increased quarter-over-quarter due to higher spend from several of our larger existing customers and
the addition of new customers.

Cost of Revenue

For the three months ended June 30, 2025, the cost of revenue declined by 0.8 million compared to the same period in the prior year, primarily due to the
absence of costs related to Hoozu, which was included in the prior year period. Excluding Hoozu, the cost of revenue remained relatively consistent year-over-year.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expense for the three months ended June 30, 2025 decreased by $2.2 million, or approximately 70%, compared to the same period in
2024. This decrease is primarily due to lower payroll and related costs, following our December 2024 targeted workforce reduction, a pause in current period
advertising and promotional spending, and decreased general contractor fees.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expense for the three months ended June 30, 2025 decreased by $0.5 million, or approximately 14%, compared to the same
period in 2024. The decrease is primarily due to lower employee-related costs following our December 2024 targeted workforce reduction, reduced use of external
contractors, decreased professional service fees, and lower software licensing expenses.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense for the three months ended June 30, 2025 decreased by $76,506, or
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approximately 34%, compared to the same period in 2024. Depreciation expense on property and equipment was $21,729 and $26,701 for the three months ended
June  30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Amortization expense was $127,513 and $177,629 for the three months ended June  30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
Depreciation and amortization expense decreased compared to the prior-year quarter primarily due to lower amortization expense due to the absence of expense
related to legacy platforms that were sunset in 2024.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest expense totaled $1,784 during the three months ended June 30, 2025, compared to $1,999 in the prior year period.
Other income, net, totaled $0.5 million during the three months ended June  30, 2025, a decrease of $0.2 million compared to the same period in 2024,

primarily from lower investment portfolio interest income.

Net Income (Loss)

Net income for the three months ended June 30, 2025 was $1.2 million, compared to the net loss of $2.2 million for the same period in 2024.

Results of Operations for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

The following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated statements of operations and the change between the periods:

Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024 $ Change % Change

Revenue $ 17,101,595  $ 16,046,699  $ 1,054,896  7 %

Costs and expenses:    
Cost of revenue 8,788,186  9,145,575  (357,389) (4)%
Sales and marketing 2,083,799  6,263,270  (4,179,471) (67)%
General and administrative 5,838,058  7,155,883  (1,317,825) (18)%
Depreciation and amortization 309,594  429,934  (120,340) (28)%

Total costs and expenses 17,019,637  22,994,662  (5,975,025) (26)%
Income (loss) from operations 81,958  (6,947,963) 7,029,921  (101)%
Other income (expense):    

Change in the fair value of digital assets —  80,116  (80,116) (100)%
Interest Expense (3,438) (4,000) 562  (14)%
Other income (expense), net 983,748  1,304,091  (320,343) (25)%

Total other income (expense), net 980,310  1,380,207  (399,897) (29)%
Net income (loss) before income taxes $ 1,062,268  $ (5,567,756) $ 6,630,024  (119)%

Tax benefit $ —  $ 107,078  $ (107,078) (100)%
Net income (loss) $ 1,062,268  $ (5,460,678) $ 6,522,946  (119)%

Revenue

Revenue during the during the six months ended June 30, 2025, increased by $1.1 million, or 7%, from the same period in 2024, which included $1.3 million
from Hoozu, which was divested in December 2024. Excluding Hoozu, revenue increased $2.7 million, or 19%, during the six months ended June 30, 2025. Revenue
from ongoing customers increased year-over-year due to higher spend from several of our larger existing customers and the addition of new customers.

Cost of Revenue

For the six months ended June 30, 2025, the cost of revenue declined by $0.4 million compared to the same period in the prior year, primarily due to the
absence of costs related to Hoozu, which was included in the prior year period. Excluding Hoozu, the cost of revenue increased by 1% year-over-year.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expense for the six months ended June 30, 2025, decreased by $4.2 million, or approximately
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67%, compared to the same period in 2024. Advertising expenses decreased due to lower payroll and related costs, following our December 2024 targeted workforce
reduction, a pause in current period advertising and promotional spending, and decreased general contractor fees.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expense for the six months ended June 30, 2025, decreased by $1.3 million, or approximately 18%, compared to the same period
in 2024. The decrease is primarily due to lower employee-related costs following our December 2024 targeted workforce reduction, reduced use of external
contractors, decreased professional service fees, and lower software licensing expenses.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense for the six months ended June 30, 2025, decreased by $120,340, or approximately 28%, compared to the same period
in 2024. Depreciation expense on property and equipment was approximately $44,684 and $53,258 for the six months ended June 30, 2025, and 2024. Amortization
expense was approximately $264,910 and $376,676 for the six months ended June  30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Amortization expense related to internal-use
software development costs was $264,910 and $252,686 for the six months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The Company did not have any amortization
expense related to acquired intangible assets for the six months ended June 30, 2025. The Company recognized $123,990 amortization expense related to acquired
intangible assets for the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest expense totaled $3,438 during the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to $4,000 in the prior year period.

Other income, net totaled $1.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2025, compared to $1.3 million in the prior year period, reflecting interest earned on
portfolio investments.

Net Income (Loss) from Operations

Net income (loss) from operations for the six months ended June 30, 2025 was $1.1 million, a $6.5 million increase from the net loss of $5.5 million for the
same period in 2024. The increase in net income was primarily the result of decreased operating costs in the current year period.

Key Metrics

We review the information provided by our key financial metrics, Managed Services Bookings, and gross billings, to assess the progress of our business and
make decisions on where to allocate our resources. As our business evolves, we may change the key financial metrics in future periods.

Managed Services Bookings

Managed Services Bookings is a measure of all sales orders received during a time period, less any cancellations received, or refunds given during the same
time period. Sales order contracts vary in complexity with each customer and range from custom content delivery to integrated marketing services; our contracts
generally run from several months for smaller contracts up to twelve months for larger contracts. We recognize revenue from our Managed Services contracts on a
percentage of completion basis as we deliver the content or services over time, which can vary greatly. Historically, bookings have converted to revenues over a 6-
month period on average. However, since late 2020, we have received increasingly larger and more complex sales orders, which, in turn, has lengthened the average
revenue period to approximately 9-months, with the largest contracts taking longer to complete. During the latter half of 2023, the time between bookings and revenue
improved to an average of 7.5 months. For this reason, Managed Services Bookings, while an overall indicator of the health of our business, may not be used to predict
quarterly revenues and could be subject to future adjustments. Managed Services Bookings is useful information as it reflects the number of orders received in one
period, even though revenue from those orders may be reflected over varying amounts of time. We use the Managed Services Bookings metric to plan operational
staffing, to identify key customer group trends to enlighten go-to-market activities, and to inform its product development efforts. Managed Services Bookings for the
three months ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 was $5.6 million and $10.3 million, respectively. Managed Services Bookings for the six months ended June 30, 2025, and
2024, was $13.1 million and $19.6 million respectively.

Non-GAAP Financial Measure

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is a “non-GAAP financial measure” under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). We define Adjusted
EBITDA as operating income (or loss) from operations before depreciation and amortization,
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non-cash stock-based compensation, and other operating adjustments that are non-recurring or unusual to our core ongoing operations.

We use Adjusted EBITDA as a measure of operating performance, for planning purposes, to allocate resources to enhance the financial performance of our
business and in communications with our Board of Directors regarding our financial performance. We believe that Adjusted EBITDA also provides valuable
information to investors as it excludes non-cash transactions, and it provides consistency to facilitate period-to-period comparisons.

You should not consider Adjusted EBITDA in isolation or as a substitute for an analysis of our results of operations as under GAAP. Not all companies
calculate Adjusted EBITDA similarly, limiting its usefulness as a comparative measure. Moreover, Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, including
that Adjusted EBITDA:

• does not include stock-based compensation expense, which is a non-cash expense, but has been, and will continue to be for the foreseeable future, a
significant recurring expense for our business and an essential part of our compensation strategy;

• does not include stock issued for payment of services, which is a non-cash expense, but has been, and is expected to be for the foreseeable future, an
important means for us to compensate our directors, vendors, and other parties who provide us with services;

• does not include depreciation and intangible assets amortization expense, impairment charges, and gains or losses on disposal of equipment, which is not
always a current period cash expense, but the assets being depreciated and amortized may have to be replaced in the future; and

• does not include non-operating activity, such as interest income and other gains, losses, and expenses that we believe are not indicative of our ongoing core
operating results, but these items may represent a reduction or increase in cash available to us.

Because of these limitations, Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered a measure of discretionary cash available to us to invest in the operation and growth
of our business or as a measure of cash that will be available to us to meet our obligations. You should compensate for these limitations by relying primarily on our
GAAP results and using these non-GAAP financial measures as supplements. In evaluating this non-GAAP financial measure, you should be aware that in the future,
we may incur expenses similar to those for which adjustments are made in calculating Adjusted EBITDA. Our presentation of this non-GAAP financial measure
should also not be construed to infer that our future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items.

The following table sets forth a reconciliation from the GAAP measurement of net income (loss) to our non-GAAP financial measure of Adjusted EBITDA
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2025, and 2024:

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2025 2024 2025 2024
Net income (loss) from operations $ 1,205,068  $ (2,194,828) $ 1,062,268  $ (5,460,678)

Adjustment to the fair market value of digital assets —  26,044  —  (80,115)
Non-cash stock-based compensation 355,714  394,931  640,846  749,120 
Non-cash stock issued for payment of services 89,994  75,000  179,996  150,006 
Depreciation and amortization 149,242  225,748  309,594  429,934 
Interest expense 1,784  1,999  3,438  4,000 
Interest income (475,342) (634,765) (946,532) (1,301,017)
Tax benefit $ —  $ (88,296) —  (107,078)

Adjusted EBITDA $ 1,326,460  $ (2,194,167) $ 1,249,610  $ (5,615,828)

Revenue $ 9,133,232  $ 9,093,816  $ 17,101,595  $ 16,046,699 
Adjusted EBITDA as a % of Revenue 15 % (24)% 7.3 % (35.0)%

 The 2024 measure excludes interest income to ensure comparability with the Company’s revised definition of the metric, which no longer includes interest income
beginning in 2025.

(1)

(1)
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Near-Term Liquidity and Capital Resources

         The Company’s cash requirements have historically included funding the development and integration of our technology platforms, marketing initiatives, and
general and administrative expenses, such as salaries, bonuses, and commissions. The Company has incurred losses and negative cash flow from operations for most
periods since inception, primarily the result of costs associated with third-party creators, salaries, bonuses and stock-based compensation, and other G&A expenses,
including technology and development costs, which exceeded revenue, has resulted in a total accumulated deficit of $103.2 million as of June 30, 2025. These deficits
have been funded through public equity.

We had cash and cash equivalents of $50.6 million as of June 30, 2025, as compared to $44.6 million as of December 31, 2024. This $6.0 million increase is
the result of the maturation of certain investments, supplemented by cash generated from operating activities.

Six Months Ended June 30,
2025 2024

Net cash (used for)/provided by:
Operating activities $ 1,245,988  $ (7,256,857)
Investing activities 6,013,506  14,245,536 
Financing activities (1,128,145) (116,508)
Effect of exchange rates on cash $ (132,802) $ (17,033)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 5,998,547  $ 6,855,138 

Net cash provided by operating activities was $1.2 million during the six months ended June 30, 2025, which is consistent with our net income. Net cash
provided by investing activities was $6.0 million during the six months ended June 30, 2025, primarily due to the maturity of marketable securities. Net cash used for
financing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2025 was $1.1 million, primarily due to payments for shares withheld for taxes and the repurchase of treasury
stock.

Financial Condition and Outlook

Revenue from ongoing customers grew 16.2% in the first six months of 2025 compared to the prior-year period. Contract backlog declined from $15.5 million
at the start of the year to $11.6 million as of June 30, 2025, reflecting slower contract bookings during the period. Net bookings totaled $13.1 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2025, down $5.4 million, or 29%, from the prior year. We believe several factors drove the decline in backlog:

• a strategic shift toward larger, more profitable recurring accounts and away from smaller, less economic projects;

• cautious marketing spend among some enterprise and agency clients due to broader economic uncertainty, including tariffs; and

• reduced internal resource allocation during our organizational transition.

We implemented significant cost savings beginning in December 2024 and continuing into early 2025 to better align operating expenses with anticipated
revenue and accelerate our path to profitability. This is demonstrated in part by our profitability during the first half of 2025. We have a strong and growing pipeline
that we believe will support profitable growth over the next twelve months. While we expect revenue to grow over time, such growth may not occur consistently each
quarter. We anticipate that operating expenses will increase gradually to support this growth; however, we believe our current cost structure is better aligned to scale
efficiently, limiting the recurrence of historical cash losses and reducing the strain on working capital as we expand our business.

We believe our cash and cash equivalents are sufficient to fund growth initiatives over the next twelve months. If additional capital is needed, we expect to
obtain it primarily through equity, equity-linked, or debt financing unless and until our operations generate sufficient profitability to meet ongoing capital requirements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company did not engage in any “off-balance sheet arrangements” (as that term is defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K) as of June 30, 2025.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

     There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies as set forth in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations,” included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024. For a summary of our significant accounting policies,
please refer to “Note 1 Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” included in Item 1 of this Quarterly Report.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See “Note 1. Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” under Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report for information on additional recent
pronouncements.

ITEM 3. — QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Not applicable to smaller reporting companies.

ITEM 4. — CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports
that the Company files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported
within the periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that the Company files under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management,
including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed
and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Furthermore, controls and procedures could be circumvented by the individual acts of
some
persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. Misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected on a timely
basis.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In connection with the preparation of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2025, an
evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer to determine the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of June 30, 2025. Based on this evaluation, our management concluded that, as of June 30, 2025, our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f) under the Exchange Act). Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer and effected by our Board of Directors, management, and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. Internal control over financial reporting includes
policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the Company’s transactions;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary for the preparation of our financial statements in accordance with GAAP, and that
receipts and expenditures are made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of any unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect financial statement misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of internal control effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) during the fiscal quarter
ended June 30, 2025 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II

ITEM 1. — LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
From time to time, we may become involved in lawsuits and various other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of our business. Litigation is

subject to inherent uncertainties and an adverse result in any such litigation that may arise from time to time that may harm our business. As of August 12, 2025 we are
not party to any legal proceedings or claims that we believe would or could have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on us.

ITEM 1A. — RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the factors discussed under Item 1A of Part I to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024
regarding the numerous and varied risks, known and unknown, that may prevent us from achieving our goals.  If any of these risks occur, our business, financial
condition, or results of operation may be materially and adversely affected. In such a case, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and investors could
lose all or part of their investment. These risk factors may not identify all risks that we face, and our operations could also be affected by factors that are not presently
known to us or that we currently consider to be immaterial to our operations. There have been no material changes to the risk factors described under “Risk Factors,”
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.

ITEM 2. — UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities

Total Number of Shares
Purchased

Average Price Paid Per
Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as part of

Publicly Announced Plans
or Programs

Approximate Dollar Value
of Shares that may yet be

Purchased under the Plans
or Programs

April 2025 56,796  $ 1.85  56,796 $ 8,848,821 
May 2025 26,310  2.48  26,310 8,783,609 
June 2025 38,682  2.80  38,682 8,675,299 
Total as of June 30, 2025 121,788  $ 2.29  121,788 $ 8,675,299 

On June 28, 2024, the Company announced the Board’s authorization of a stock repurchase program under which the Company may repurchase up to $5.0 million of
its common stock from time to time through open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions, block trades or any combination thereof, subject to market
conditions (the “Repurchase Program”). In conjunction with the Cooperation Agreement, the maximum authorized repurchase amount under the Repurchase
Program was increased to $10.0 million. On June 16, 2025, the Company entered into an agreement adopted under the safe harbors provided by Rule 10b5-1 and
Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act to purchase shares of common stock, terminating on the earliest of May 31, 2026, or at such time as the aggregate number of
shares are repurchased or upon certain other events. The agreement provides for the purchase of up to $8.6 million of common stock, which was the remainder of the
Board’s authorization under the Repurchase Program at the time of entry into such agreement.

On May 16, 2025, the Company commenced a modified “Dutch Auction” tender offer to repurchase up to $8.7 million of its common stock at $2.80 per share,
which concluded on June 16, 2025. The Company repurchased 38,682 shares in the tender offer.

Dollar amounts in this column equal the number of shares remaining available for purchase under the stock repurchase programs as of the last date of the applicable
month multiplied by month average price paid per share.

(1)(2) (1)(3)

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

32



ITEM 3. — DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
Not applicable.

ITEM 4. — MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. — OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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ITEM 6. — EXHIBITS

Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of IZEA Worldwide, Inc. (as amended through June 16, 2023)
3.2 Certificate of Designation (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 28,

2024).
3.3 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of IZEA, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC

on June 17, 2024).
10.1 10b5-1 Issuer Repurchase Instructions, dated September 27, 2024, between IZEA Worldwide, Inc. and Ladenburg Thalmann & Co. Inc. (incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 30, 2024)
31.1 * Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 * Certification of Principal Financial and Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 * (a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2 * (a) Certification of Principal Financial and Accounting Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002.
101 * (b) The following materials from IZEA Worldwide, Inc.'s Quarterly Report for the period ended June 30, 2025 are formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business

Reporting Language): (i) the Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Loss, (iii) the Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity, (iv) the Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow, and (v) the Notes
to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

104 * Cover Page Interactive File (formatted as inline XBRL and contained within Exhibit 101).

*    Filed or furnished herewith.

    In accordance with Item 601of Regulation S-K, this Exhibit is hereby furnished to the SEC as an accompanying document and is not deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that Section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference
into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933.

    In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the XBRL related information in Exhibit 101 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q shall not be deemed to be “filed” for purposes
of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, and shall not be incorporated by reference into any registration statement or other
document filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing.

(a)

(b)
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 

IZEA Worldwide, Inc.
a Nevada Corporation

     
August 12, 2025 By:  /s/ Patrick J. Venetucci
    Patrick J. Venetucci

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) 
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EXHIBIT 3.1
 

AMENDED AND RESTATED

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

IZEA WORLDWIDE, INC.,

A Nevada corporation
(As amended through June 16, 2023)

ARTICLE I

NAME

The name of the corporation is IZEA Worldwide, Inc. (the “Corporation”).

ARTICLE II

RESIDENT AGENT AND REGISTERED OFFICE

The name and address of the Corporation's resident agent for service of process is Corporation Service Company ("CSC") 112 NORTH CURRY
STREET Carson City, NV 89703, USA

ARTICLE III

CAPITAL STOCK

3.01 Authorized Capital Stock. The total number of shares this Corporation is authorized to issue shall be sixty million (60,000,000) shares.
This stock shall be divided into two classes to be designated as ‘Common Stock’ and ‘Preferred Stock.’

3.02 Common Stock. The total number of authorized shares of Common Stock shall be fifty million (50,000,000) shares with par value of
$0.0001 per share.

3.03 Preferred Stock. The total number of authorized shares of Preferred Stock shall be ten million (10,000,000) shares with par value of
$0.0001 per share. The board of directors shall have the authority to authorize the issuance of the Preferred Stock from time to time in one or more
classes or series, and to state in the resolution or resolutions from time to time adopted providing for the issuance thereof the following:

(a) Whether or not the class or series shall have voting rights, full or limited, the nature and qualifications, limitations and restrictions
on those rights, or whether the class or series will be without voting rights;

(b) The number of shares to constitute the class or series and the designation thereof;

(c) The preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, if any, and the qualifications, limitations, or
restrictions thereof, if any, with respect to any class or series;



(d) Whether or not the shares of any class or series shall be redeemable and if redeemable, the redemption price or prices, and the
time or times at which, and the terms and conditions upon which, such shares shall be redeemable and the manner of redemption;

(e) Whether or not the shares of a class or series shall be subject to the operation of retirement or sinking funds to be applied to the
purchase or redemption of such shares for retirement, and if such retirement or sinking funds be established, the amount and the terms and
provisions thereof;

(f) The dividend rate, whether dividends are payable in cash, stock of the Corporation, or other property, the conditions upon which
and the times when such dividends are payable, the preference to or the relation to the payment of dividends payable on any other class or
classes or series of stock, whether or not such dividend shall be cumulative or noncumulative, and if cumulative, the date or dates from which
such dividends shall accumulate;

(g) The preferences, if any, and the amounts thereof which the holders of any class or series thereof are entitled to receive upon the
voluntary or involuntary dissolution of, or upon any distribution of assets of, the Corporation;

(h) Whether or not the shares of any class or series are convertible into, or exchangeable for, the shares of any other class or classes or
of any other series of the same or any other class or classes of stock of the Corporation and the conversion price or prices or ratio or ratios or the
rate or rates at which such exchange may be made, with such adjustments, if any, as shall be stated and expressed or provided for in such
resolution or resolutions; and

(i) Such other rights and provisions with respect to any class or series as may to the board of directors seem advisable.

The shares of each class or series of the Preferred Stock may vary from the shares of any other class or series thereof in any respect. The Board
of Directors may increase the number of shares of the Preferred Stock designated for any existing class or series by a resolution adding to such class or
series authorized and unissued shares of the Preferred Stock not designated for any existing class or series of the Preferred Stock and the shares so
subtracted shall become authorized, unissued and undesignated shares of the Preferred Stock.

ARTICLE IV

DIRECTORS

The number of directors comprising the board of directors shall be fixed and may be increased or decreased from time to time in the manner
provided in the bylaws of the Corporation, except that at no time shall there be less than one director.

ARTICLE V

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be
organized under Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”).



ARTICLE VI

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS' LIABILITY

The individual liability of the directors and officers of the Corporation is hereby eliminated to the fullest extent permitted by the NRS, as the
same may be amended and supplemented. Any repeal or modification of this Article by the stockholders of the Corporation shall be prospective only
and shall not adversely affect any limitation on the personal liability of a director or officer of the Corporation for acts or omissions prior to such repeal
or modification.

ARTICLE VII

INDEMNITY

Every person who was or is a party to, or is threatened to be made a party to, or is involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that he, or a person of whom he is the legal representative, is or was a director or officer
of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director or officer of another corporation, or as its representative in a
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, shall be indemnified and held harmless to the fullest extent legally permissible under the laws of the
State of Nevada from time to time against all expenses, liability and loss (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid or to be paid in
settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by him in connection therewith. Such right of indemnification shall be a contract right which may be
enforced in any manner desired by such person. The expenses of officers and directors incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or
proceeding must be paid by the Corporation as they are incurred and in advance of the final disposition of the action, suit or proceeding, upon receipt of
an undertaking by or on behalf of the director or officer to repay the amount if it is ultimately determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that he is
not entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation. Such right of indemnification shall not be exclusive of any other right which such directors, officers
or representatives may have or hereafter acquire, and, without limiting the generality of such statement, they shall be entitled to their respective rights of
indemnification under any bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders, provision of law, or otherwise, as well as their rights under this Article.

Without limiting the application of the foregoing, the board of directors may adopt bylaws from time to time with respect to indemnification, to
provide at all times the fullest indemnification permitted by the laws of the State of Nevada, and may cause the Corporation to purchase and maintain
insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director or officer of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as director
or officer of another corporation, or as its representative in a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprises against any liability asserted against
such person and incurred in any such capacity or arising out of such status, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify such
person.

The indemnification provided in this Article shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent, and shall
inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such person.

AMENDED: July 30, 2012
AMENDED: April 17, 2014
AMENDED: January 11, 2016
AMENDED: June 16, 2023



EXHIBIT 31.1
 

Certification by Principal Executive Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

 
I, Patrick J. Venetucci, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of IZEA Worldwide, Inc.;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared;
 

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;
 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and
 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
 
Dated:  August 12, 2025
 

/s/ Patrick J. Venetucci  
Patrick J. Venetucci  
Chief Executive Officer  
(Principal Executive Officer)  



EXHIBIT 31.2
 

Certification by Principal Financial and Accounting Officer
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

 
I, Peter J. Biere, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of IZEA Worldwide, Inc.;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared;
 

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;
 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and
 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
 
Dated:  August 12, 2025
 

/s/ Peter J. Biere  
Peter J. Biere  
Chief Financial Officer  
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)  



EXHIBIT 32.1

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Quarterly Report of IZEA Worldwide, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2025,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Patrick J. Venetucci, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
(1)           The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
(2)           The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Dated:  August 12, 2025
 

/s/ Patrick J. Venetucci  
Patrick J. Venetucci
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

 



EXHIBIT 32.2

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Quarterly Report of IZEA Worldwide, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2025,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Peter J. Biere, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
(1)           The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
(2)           The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Dated:  August 12, 2025
 

    

/s/ Peter J. Biere  
Peter J. Biere
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

 


